




Page 1 of 1

Willamette Water Supply System Commission  
Board Meeting Agenda

Thursday, December 1, 2022 | 12:00 – 1:30 PM
Microsoft Teams Meeting

This meeting will not be held at a physical location. If you wish to attend and need dial-in information, please contact 
annette.rehms@tvwd.org or call 971-222-5957 by 10:00 a.m. on December 1, 2022. 

If you wish to address the WWSS Board, please request the Public Comment Form and return it 48 hours prior to the day of the 
meeting.  

The meeting is accessible to persons with disabilities and those who need qualified bilingual interpreters. A request for an 
interpreter for the hearing impaired, a bilingual interpreter or for other accommodations should be made at least 72 hours before 
the meeting to the contact listed above. 

REGULAR SESSION – 12:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER 

1. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Dave Kraska 
Brief presentation on current activities relative to the WWSS Commission

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
This time is set aside for persons wishing to address the Board on items on the Consent Agenda, as well as matters not on the 
agenda. Additional public comment will be invited on agenda items as they are presented. Each person is limited to five minutes 
unless an extension is granted by the Board. Should three or more people testify on the same topic, each person will be limited to 
three minutes.

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
These items are considered to be routine and may be approved in one motion without separate discussion. Any Board member 
may request that an item be removed by motion for discussion and separate action. Any items requested to be removed from the 
Consent Agenda for separate discussion will be considered immediately after the Board has approved those items which do not 
require discussion.

A. Approve the October 6, 2022 meeting minutes

4. BUSINESS AGENDA
A. Approve WTP_1.0 Third-Party Materials Testing and Special Inspection Contract – Mike Britch

5. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. Planned February Business Agenda items – Joelle Bennett
B. The next Board Meeting is scheduled on February 2, 2023, via Microsoft Teams 

6. COMMUNICATIONS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
A. None scheduled

ADJOURNMENT



 
 
 
 

Willamette Water Supply System Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 
 



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

To: WWSS Board of Commissioners

From: David Kraska, P.E., WWSS General Manager

Date: December 1, 2022

Subject: Willamette Water Supply System General Manager’s Report

This report provides an overview of some of the current Willamette Water Supply System (WWSS) work efforts 
under the direction of this Commission, beginning with a Safety Minute presentation. 

1. Permitting and Communications Updates – The Willamette Water Supply Program (WWSP) permitting
efforts remain very active. Attached to this General Manager’s Report is a tabulation of the permits and
approvals recently granted, and the status of those currently in process.

Permitting highlights:
The Oregon Department of State Lands (DSL) has approved the permit modification for the Tualatin
River Major Blow Off submitted in August.  Staff continues to work with the US Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE) in their review of the plans for the blow off.  USACE staff have indicated no public
noticing will be required for this modification.  USACE has forwarded the permit modification
request and plans to the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) and the Department of
Environmental Quality (DEQ) for their consultation and comments. The WWSP Permitting team has
been meeting with ODFW staff to respond to questions and provide clarifications about the plans.
On December 9, the WWSP Permitting team will provide ODFW staff with a tour of the blow off site
for a better understanding of challenging topography and other related constraints.
The City of Sherwood recently issued seven building permits for the Water Treatment Plant
(WTP)_1.0 project.  An additional 13 building permits are anticipated to be issued by January 2023
for this project.

Communications highlights: 
On December 5, WWSP Communications staff will make a presentation to the Wilsonville City
Council on our outreach efforts in the city. The presentation will include an update on the Raw
Water Facility (RWF)_1.0 project, our pipeline projects including the upcoming PLM_1.3 project,
improvements required in the ground lease, and other related work in the city.  Staff will also review
ongoing and future communication efforts with residents and businesses along with coordination
efforts with affected agencies.

2. Quarterly Financial Reports – Task 4.d. of the Annual Work Plan requires the Managing Agency to prepare
quarterly financial reports and provide them to the WWSS Board as part of the packet. Attached to this
General Manager’s report is the WWSS quarterly financial statement for the period ending September 30,
2022.

3. WWSS Board Elections –   Section 5.3 of the WWSS Commission intergovernmental agreement states
that the WWSS Board shall elect from its members a Chair and Vice Chair at the first Board meeting

1A-1



Willamette Water Supply System (WWSS) General Manager’s Report
December 1, 2022 
Page 2 of 6 

each calendar year. As we are not anticipating holding a January 2023 Board meeting, our first 
meeting for next calendar year will be in February. As a reminder, at our January 2022 meeting we 
discussed standardizing on two-year terms for officers. Currently, both Chair Judah and Vice Chair 
Duggan are in the second of their two-year terms. 

4. Construction Status Updates – Attached to this General Manager’s Report is a tabulation of the status of all
the active construction projects. To provide a more complete understanding of the work underway, we will
share a presentation of recent photos from these construction sites. A copy of this presentation is attached
to this General Manager’s report.

1A-1



Willamette Water Supply System (WWSS) General Manager’s Report
December 1, 2022 
Page 3 of 6 

Willamette Water Supply Program Permits and Approvals – Recent Actions and Status 

Date of Report: November 17, 2022 

Permits and Approvals Recently Granted 

Agency Projects Involved Permit or Approval Granted 

City of Sherwood WTP_1.0 Building Permits (3 to cover entire site) and Plumbing Permits (4 to cover 
entire site)

City of Wilsonville PLM_1.3 Tree Removal Approval, Landscape Modification Approval, and Partial 
Grading and Erosion Control Permit

TriMet PLW_2.1 License Agreement (fully executed)
WCLUT MPE_1.2 Traffic Signal Shutdown Permit 
ODOT PLM_4.3 Occupancy Permit (Roy Rogers Road Detour)
Union Pacific Railroad PLM_4.2 Pipeline Crossing Agreement
USFWS System-Wide Migratory Bird Depredation Permit Renewal 
DSL System-Wide Permit Modification 8 (Tualatin River Temporary Discharge Facility) 

 
Permits and Approvals Submitted 

Agency Projects Involved Permit or Approval Submitted  

DSL PLM_1.1 Annual Monitoring Report 
 

Permits and Approvals in Progress 

Agency Projects Involved Permit or Approval in Progress  

City of Beaverton MPE_1.2 PFC Facility Electrical, Mechanical and Plumbing permits 
Washington County MPE_1.3 Electrical and Temporary Road Closure permits; Beaverton Noise/Night 

Variance Permit
Washington County PLM_3.0 Noise Variance 
Washington County PLM_4.2 Cipole Night Variance; Sherwood Right of Way and Temporary Road Closure 

permits; Tualatin Detour Route and Sign Placement Permit (Herman and 
124th)

Washington County PLM_4.3 Electrical, Noise Variance, Road Closure Permit for Roy Rogers Road
Washington County PLW_2.1 ROW Access Permit; Hillsboro Tree Care, Type I Land Use, Building, Private 

Utility permits
Washington County RES_1.0 Mechanical and Electrical Permits 

 

Anticipated Approvals  

Agency Projects Involved Permit or Approval Anticipated  

City of Sherwood PLM_4.2 Right of Way, Temporary Road Closure, Engineering permits; Tualatin Detour 
Route and Sign Placement Permit (Herman and 124th) 

City of Sherwood WTP_1.0 Engineering Plan Review, Retaining Wall Permit, Mechanical permits; WaCo 
Facility Permit 

Washington County PLM_4.3 Noise Variance, Road Closure permits
Washington County PLW_2.1 ROW Access Permit; Hillsboro Tree Care, Building, Grading and Erosion 

Control, Public Infrastructure, Private Utility permits
Washington County RES_1.0 Building Permits (4) 

1A-1



Willamette Water Supply System (WWSS) General Manager’s Report
December 1, 2022 
Page 4 of 6 

Willamette Water Supply Program Projects Construction – Recent Status Update 

Date of Report: November 17, 2022 

Project Description Progress Since Last Month

1. RWF_1.0 Raw Water Facilities project located at the 
Willamette River Water Treatment Plant 

GMP-1.5:
- Completed fine grading and 2” lift of asphalt for 

Upper Site. 
- Completed rough-in of Upper Site bioswales  
- Completed installation and testing of all Upper 

Site utility work. 
- Completed installation of log steps and 

landscaping at Lower Site. 
- Completed permeable asphalt and concrete 

curb and cut-off wall.   
- Re-opened the Park area to the public. 

Continued periodic landscape maintenance. 

GMP-2: 
- Submittals in review 
- Electrical subcontractor mobilized to site 

2. PLM_1.3 Raw water pipeline project in Wilsonville from 
Wilsonville Road to Garden Acres Road 

- Potholing utility crossings
- Submittals 
- Staging area preparation scheduled for 

December 

3. WTP_1.0 Water Treatment Plant project, located in City of 
Sherwood, near the intersection of SW Tualatin-
Sherwood Road and SW 124th Avenue 

- Continue mass excavation and embankment fill
- Continue drilling and controlled rock blasting 
- Continue rock crushing 
- Temporary electrical service 
- Critical submittals including baseline CPM 

schedule 
- First concrete placement at Area 30 UV 

4. PLM_4.1 Finished water pipeline project being completed 
in partnership with Washington County’s Highway 
99 Crossing Pipeline and Tualatin Sherwood Road 
- Langer Farms Parkway to Borchers Drive 

- Completed trenchless crossing of Hwy 99
- 66” waterline installed in trenchless casing
- Began 66” open cut waterline  
- Continue road widening on Tualatin-Sherwood 

Rd 

5. PLM_4.2 Finished water pipeline project being completed 
in partnership with Washington County’s Tualatin 
Sherwood Rd - Teton Avenue to Langer Farms 
Parkway (pipeline portion of the project extends 
from SW 124th Avenue to Langer Farms) 

- Road widening along South side of Tualatin-
Sherwood Road 

- Retaining Walls 
- Utility Relocates 
- WWSP submittals 

6. PLM_4.4 Finished water pipeline project being completed 
in partnership with Washington County’s Roy 
Rogers Road - Chicken Creek to Borchers Drive  

- Processing WWSP submittals and RFIs
- Sound walls currently being installed along the 

north side of Roy Rogers Rd. 

1A-1



Willamette Water Supply System (WWSS) General Manager’s Report
December 1, 2022 
Page 5 of 6 

Project Description  Progress Since Last Month

7. PLM_4.3 Finished water pipeline project in unincorporated 
Washington County along Roy Rogers Road

- Access and haul roads for waterline construction
- Secant pile installation for north tunnel shaft 

completed 
- Secant pile installation of south shaft completed 
- Spoils removal from both shafts ongoing 
- 2,145 LF of 66” open cut pipe installed along Roy 

Rogers Rd north of Chicken Creek 
- Temporary access road for Wildlife Refuge 

access started 

8. RES_1.0/ 
PLM_5.3 

Water Storage Tank and finished water pipeline 
project in rural Washington County. Tank site at 
SW Grabhorn Road and Stonecreek Drive. Pipeline 
extends from SW Grabhorn Road at SW Tile Flat 
Road to SW Rosedale Road at future Cornelius 
Pass Extension. 

- RES_1.0 – Continue rock excavation and haul off 
- RES_1.0 – Continue construction of the soil 

nail/rock bolt retaining walls 
- RES_1.0 – Continue excavation of 66” yard 

piping and valve vaults 
- RES_1.0 – Continue installation of 12” and 18” 

stormwater lines 
- RES_1.0 – Continue preparing water tank 

subgrade 
- PLM_5.3 - Continue installation of 66” waterline 

– approximately 6,400 LF (32%) installed  
- PLM_5.3 - Ground improvement (cement deep 

soil mixing) continues 
- Excavated launch and receiving shafts for 

trenchless crossing of Farmington Rd. 

9. PLW_1.3 Finished water pipeline project in South Hillsboro 
from SW Farmington Road to SE Blanton Street 

- Farmington turnout vault piping and electrical 
work 

- Butternut Creek turnout electrical and control 
panels 

- Correction of deficiency list items 

10. PLW_1.2 Finished water pipeline project in South Hillsboro 
from TV HWY to Frances Street 

- 48” WWSP waterline installation between York 
St. and Augusta Dr. on Cornelius Pass Rd. 

- Completed trenchless crossing of Reedville 
Creek 

- Soundwall pilaster installation on Cornelius Pass 
Rd. 

- Storm sewer relocation on Cornelius Pass Rd. 

11. MPE_1.1/ 
COB_1.1 

Finished water pipeline project being completed 
in partnership with the City of Beaverton’s SW 
Western Avenue project 

- 48” WWSP waterline on Western Ave. nearly 
complete 

- Continued work on test stations, blowoff 
assemblies and CARV appurtenance piping 

- Installation of COB 16” water main in Beaverton-
Hillsdale Hwy.  

- Service connections and tie-ins from Arctic to 5th

St. 
- City stormwater, paving and curb improvements 

along Western Ave. 

1A-1



Willamette Water Supply System (WWSS) General Manager’s Report
December 1, 2022 
Page 6 of 6 

Project Description  Progress Since Last Month

12. MPE_1.2/ 
COB_1.2

Finished water pipeline project in Beaverton from 
SW Scholls Ferry Road at Greenway Park to SW 
Allen Boulevard at Western Avenue 

- Completed tunnel #1 at lower Fanno Creek
- 16” COB waterline on Scholls Ferry Rd.
- COB waterline on Denney Rd. 
- Continue 48” open cut waterline on Scholls Ferry 

Rd up to Denney Rd. 
- PFC facility earthwork and utility preparation 

13. MPE_1.3 Finished water pipeline project in Beaverton on 
SW Scholls Ferry Road, Roy Rogers to Greenway 
Park  

- Submittals
- Mobilization
- Upcoming sewer relocation 
- December start at Roy Rogers Rd/Scholls Ferry 

Rd 

 

1A-1









 
 
 
 

Willamette Water Supply System Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 
 



Willamette Water Supply System
For the annual budget period ending June 30, 2023
For the quarter ended September 30, 2022

Unaudited

Budget Actual Variance
Annual
 Budget

Budget
 To date Actual Variance

Remaining
Budget

Revenues

324,353$           96,282$              (228,071)$           Admin Services 1,297,410$        324,353$               96,282$                (228,071)$               1,201,128$        

100$  Miscellaneous Income 100$  

93,160,895        15,560,768        (77,600,127)        Capital contributions 372,643,578      93,160,895$          15,560,768          (77,600,127)            357,082,810      

93,485,247$     15,657,149$      (77,828,198)$     Total Revenues 373,940,988$   93,485,247$          15,657,149$        (77,828,198)$         358,283,939$   

Expenditures

299,353$           96,282$              203,071$            Materials and Services 1,197,410$        299,353$               96,282$                203,071$                1,101,128$        

93,160,895        15,560,768        77,600,127         Capital Outlay 372,643,578      93,160,895$          15,560,768          77,600,127             357,082,810      

25,000                - 25,000                 Contingency 100,000             25,000$  - 25,000 100,000             

93,485,247$     15,657,049$      77,828,198$      Total Expenditures 373,940,988$   93,485,247$          15,657,049$        77,828,198$           358,283,939$   

Activity for the Quarter Annual

Page 1 of 1

1A-3



 
 
 
 

Willamette Water Supply System Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 
 



1A-4







































 
 
 
 

Willamette Water Supply System Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 
 



Willamette Water Supply System Commission
Board Meeting Minutes – October 6, 2022 | Page 1 of 3

Willamette Water Supply System Commission
Board Meeting Minutes

Thursday, October 6, 2022

Attendance: 

Commissioners present: 
City of Beaverton Allison Tivnon (alternate)
City of Hillsboro David Judah
Tualatin Valley Water District (TVWD) Jim Duggan 
Committee Members present:
City of Beaverton Dan Weinheimer, David Winship
City of Hillsboro Niki Iverson, Lee Lindsey
TVWD Tom Hickmann, Pete Boone
Managing Agency Staff present:
WWSS Commission General Manager / 
Willamette Water Supply Program (WWSP) Director

Dave Kraska

TVWD General Counsel Clark Balfour  
WWSP Assistant Director Joelle Bennett
WWSP Program Manager Jeremy Taylor
WWSP Engineering and Construction Manager Mike Britch 
WWSP Permitting and Outreach Manager Christina Walter
WWSP Finance Manager Not available 
WWSS Commission Recorder / WWSP Executive Assistant   Annette Rehms
Other Attendees present: 
City of Hillsboro JWC Water Treatment Manager Chris Wilson
TVWD Water Resources Division Manager Joel Cary
TVWD Capital Improvement Program Manager Nick Augustus
TVWD Asset Management Division Manager Matt Oglesby

REGULAR SESSION – 12:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Judah called the regular Willamette Water Supply System (WWSS) Commission meeting to order at 
12:01 p.m.  

ROLL CALL

Ms. Rehms administered the roll call and noted a quorum was present.

3A-1



Willamette Water Supply System Commission
Board Meeting Minutes – October 6, 2022 | Page 2 of 3

1. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Kraska presented a safety minute on First Rain: driving after a dry spell. (presentation on file)

The General Manager’s report included status updates on Willamette Water Supply Program (WWSP) 
permitting and communications activities, and construction progress. (presentation on file)

In response to questions, staff will reach out to the program’s communications team and provide a follow-
up email to the commissioners regarding traffic control concerns on MPE_1.2 near Scholls Ferry Road and 
Crestwood Drive.  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

There were no public comments.

3. CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approve the September 1, 2022, meeting minutes

Motion was made by Duggan and seconded by Tivnon to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The 
motion passed unanimously with Tivnon, Judah, and Duggan voting in favor. 

4. BUSINESS AGENDA

A. Approve PLM_1.3 Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) Engineering and Construction Agreement 
Amendment – Joelle Bennett  

Ms. Bennett provided an overview of the existing PLM_1.3 agreement and the proposed amendment. BPA 
owns and operates two substations with buried infrastructure connecting the two substations across SW 
Ridder Road, in conflict with the PLM_1.3 pipeline project. She said the team has been coordinating with 
BPA on SW Ridder Road in Wilsonville for several years to determine the best path through this congested 
utility corridor. In June of 2021, the Commission passed a resolution approving an agreement with BPA, to 
facilitate the utility relocation. The initial agreement was finalized with BPA to include the scoping and cost 
estimating efforts which allowed BPA to better understand the scope of work. Today’s amendment 
addresses the remaining work necessary to accomplish the relocations.  BPA will pull back and then restore 
the underground connections between the two substations.  Other options for installing the PLM_1.3 
pipeline to avoid the BPA utilities are more expensive than coordinating with BPA.  

Motion was made by Tivnon and seconded by Duggan to adopt Resolution No. WWSS-07-22 approving an 
amendment to the agreement on behalf of the Willamette Water Supply Commission between the Tualatin 
Valley Water District and Bonneville Power Administration (Agreement Number 21TP-12325) for utility 
relocations. The motion passed unanimously with Tivnon, Judah, and Duggan voting in favor. 

5. INFORMATION ITEMS 

A. Planned December Business Agenda items – Joelle Bennett

3A-1



Willamette Water Supply System Commission
Board Meeting Minutes – October 6, 2022 | Page 3 of 3

Ms. Bennett presented information on a business agenda item planned for the December 1, 2022, WWSS 
Commission Regular Board meeting.

Staff anticipates recommending approval of: 
1. WTP_1.0 Materials Testing and Special Inspection 

B. The next Board meeting is scheduled on December 1, 2022, via Microsoft Teams.

6. COMMUNICATIONS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

A. None scheduled

In response to questions, Board meetings will continue to be held remotely and in February 2023 the 
General Manager will provide an update on transitioning to hybrid meetings.   

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Chair Judah adjourned the meeting at 12:45 p.m.

David Judah, Chair James Duggan, Vice Chair

3A-1



 
 
 
 

Willamette Water Supply System Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 
 



STAFF REPORT

To: WWSS Board of Commissioners

From: Mike Britch, P.E., WWSP Engineering & Construction Manager

Date: December 1, 2022

Subject: Request Approval of Contract with Carlson Testing, Inc. for WTP_1.0 Materials Testing 
and Special Inspections Contract for the Willamette Water Supply Program

Requested Board Action: 
Consider approving contract 2023-027 for $1,236,180.00 with Carlson Testing, Inc. for WTP_1.0 Materials 
Testing and Special Inspection and transferring $3,310,572 into Management Reserve.

Key Concepts:
A best-value selection process was used for this procurement and the Request for Proposal (RFP)
was published on August 22, 2022.
No firms elected to participate in proprietary meetings to ask questions about the project, and 3
firms submitted forms indicating their intent to respond to the RFP. Three narrative proposals
were received and scored, and following that, a public price proposal opening was held.
Carlson Testing, Inc., was identified as the highest-scoring respondent based on the combined
scores for narrative and price proposals, having received the second highest non-cost score and
proposing the lowest cost.
Notice to Proceed for the inspection services is planned upon approval and execution of the
contract.
Approval of the proposed contract and ten percent contingency value, the total of which is
within the current Baseline budget, would result in a transfer into Management Reserve in the
amount of $3,310,572

Background: 
The Program’s standard method of contracting materials testing, and special inspection services is to issue 
project specific task orders with a Master Services Agreement (MSA) as the overarching “contract”. This 
approach is limited by Local Contract Review Board Rules to $250,000 per task order. Therefore, the 
Program issued a Request for Proposal (“RFP”) to procure the WTP_1.0 Materials Testing and Special 
Inspection services. Only contractors prequalified pursuant to RFQ-PGM-0300521 were eligible to submit 
proposals in response to the RFP.  The RFP documents were compiled in conjunction with the Construction 
Management Team, Project Manager, and the Design Consultant to ensure a comprehensive Scope of 
Work was created.  

Budget Impact: 
The contract amount is $1,236,180, which is within the approved baseline budget (Baseline 7.0, prepared 
in Q4 2021) for this project. A project contingency of ten percent, $123,618, is recommended as a 
standard Program practice.  The contract amount including recommended project contingency is less than 
the project budget in Baseline 7.0. Consistent with previous baselines, the Baseline 7.0 budget for 

4A-1



Construction Management Inspection services was established as a percentage of construction cost (one 
percent).  
 
The table below provides information on the baseline budget, the contract price, and the recommended 
contingency.  
 

Total Contract Price $1,236,180 
Recommended Project Contingency (10%) $123,618 
Total Estimated Cost $1,359,798
  
Baseline 7.0 Construction Management Inspection Budget $4,670,370 
Transfer (Increase) to Management Reserve $3,310,572 

WTP_1.0 Partner Costs $1,359,798
         TVWD Estimated Share1          $848,377.97 
         Hillsboro Estimated Share1 $423,169.14 
         Beaverton Estimated Share1 $88,250.89

 

1 Based on overall project ownership percentage from Baseline 7.0 budget and WWSS IGA  

Staff Contact Information:  
David Kraska, P.E., WWSP Program Director; 503-941-4561; david.kraska@tvwd.org 
Mike Britch, P.E., WWSP Engineering & Construction Manager; 503-941-4565; mike.britch@tvwd.org  
 
Attachments:  

 Exhibit A: Contract 2022-061 
 Exhibit B: Price Proposal Summary 
 Exhibit C: Best Value Scoring Summary 

4A-1



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



4A-2



Client: Willamette Water Supply Program
Project: RFP-WTP-0400822
Description: WTP_1.0 Materials Testing & Special Inspection

Item No. Item Description Unit Qty Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price

1

Task 1.1 General Consultaion
Project Manager meeting attendance as requested. (Rate Includes all costs for travel to 
and from the meeting location, and all overhead and administrative
costs.)

HR 330

97.00$  

 $              32,010.00 

115.00$             

 $              37,950.00 

130.00$             

 $ 42,900.00 

TASK 1.2 Certified Structural Steel Welding
Inspection – see Tables 3A, 3C and 3D on Sheets 01- S-60001 through 01-S-60004

2

Task 1.2.1
Review pipe manufacturer’s welding processes and quality control procedures
(Unit price includes all costs for travel to and from the manufacturer’s facility, labor, 
time on site, non- destructive testing methods, equipment and material expenses, report 
preparation, and all overhead and
administrative costs. Assume 8 hours total per visit.)

EA 20

640.00$                

 $              12,800.00 

750.00$             

 $              15,000.00 

950.00$             

 $ 19,000.00 

3

Task 1.2.2
Certified Welding Inspections including visual inspection. Rate shall include all costs 
for travel to and from the Site, time on site, equipment and material expenses,
report preparation, and all overhead and administrative
costs.)

HR 400

80.00$  

 $              32,000.00 

115.00$             

 $              46,000.00 

90.00$               

 $ 36,000.00 

4

Task 1.2.3
Certified Welding Inspections including visual inspection and non-destructive testing 
including magnetic particle or ultrasonic testing methods (Rate shall include all costs 
for travel to and from the Site, time on site, equipment and material expenses, report
preparation, and all overhead and administrative costs.)

HR 2000

80.00$  

 $            160,000.00 

115.00$             

 $            230,000.00 

105.00$             

 $               210,000.00 

Northwest Testing, Inc.Carlson Testing, Inc Intertek-PSI

4A-3



Client: Willamette Water Supply Program
Project: RFP-WTP-0400822
Description: WTP_1.0 Materials Testing & Special Inspection

Item No. Item Description Unit Qty Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price

Northwest Testing, Inc.Carlson Testing, Inc Intertek-PSI

5

Task 1.2.4
Additional Ultrasonic Testing Supplies and Equipment for each UT test. (Unit price 
includes additional subconsultant labor, equipment and material expenses for each 
ultrasonic weld inspection performed that are not included in the hourly rate for 
certified welding
inspection, Task 1.2.3. Direct Labor will be paid per the hourly rate for certified 
welding inspection task 1.2.3.)

EA 100

Included

 Included 

75.00$               

 $                7,500.00 

40.00$               

 $                   4,000.00 

6

Task 1.2.5
Certified Welding Inspections including visual inspection for structural steel. (Rate 
shall include all costs for travel to and from the Site, time on site,
equipment and material expenses, report preparation, and all overhead and 
administrative costs.)

HR 1000

80.00$                  

 $              80,000.00 

115.00$             

 $            115,000.00 

90.00$               

 $                 90,000.00 

TASK 1.3 Certified Structural Steel Bolting Inspection
– see Table 3B on Sheets 01-S-60001 through 01-S- 60004

7

Task 1.3.1
Review bolt manufacturer’s installation processes and quality control procedures
(Unit price includes all costs for travel to and from the manufacturer’s facility, labor, 
time on site, non- destructive testing methods, equipment and material
expenses, report preparation, and all overhead and administrative costs. Assume 8 
hours total per visit.)

EA 20

640.00$                

 $              12,800.00 

750.00$             

 $              15,000.00 

950.00$             

 $                 19,000.00 

8

Task 1.3.2
Certified Bolting Inspections including visual inspection prior to bolting. (Rate shall 
include all costs for travel to and from the Site, time on site, equipment and material 
expenses,
report preparation, and all overhead and administrative
costs.)

HR 500

80.00$                  

 $              40,000.00 

115.00$             

 $              57,500.00 

90.00$               

 $                 45,000.00 

9

Task 1.3.3
Certified Bolting Inspections including visual inspection during bolting (Rate shall 
include all costs for travel to and from the Site,
time on site, equipment and material expenses, report preparation, and all overhead 
and administrative costs.)

HR 1000

80.00$                  

 $              80,000.00 

115.00$             

 $            115,000.00 

90.00$               

 $                 90,000.00 

4A-3



Client: Willamette Water Supply Program
Project: RFP-WTP-0400822
Description: WTP_1.0 Materials Testing & Special Inspection

Item No. Item Description Unit Qty Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price

Northwest Testing, Inc.Carlson Testing, Inc Intertek-PSI

10

Tasks 1.3.4
Certified Bolting Inspections including visual inspection and testing after bolting. 
Document acceptance or rejection of all bolted connections (Rate shall include all 
costs for travel to and from the Site, time on site,
equipment and material expenses, report preparation, and all overhead and 
administrative costs.)

HR 200

80.00$                  

 $              16,000.00 

115.00$             

 $              23,000.00 

90.00$               

 $                 18,000.00 

TASK 1.4 Certified Non-Structural Steel Welding Inspection- see Table 4 on Sheets 01-
S-60001 through 01-S-60004

11

Task 1.4.1
Review cold-formed steel manufacturer’s welding processes, quality control 
procedures and certified mil test reports
(Unit price includes all costs for travel to and from the manufacturer’s facility, labor, 
time on site, non- destructive testing methods, equipment and material expenses, report 
preparation, and all overhead and
administrative costs. Assume 8 hours total per visit.)

EA 10

640.00$                

 $                6,400.00 

750.00$             

 $                7,500.00 

950.00$             

 $                   9,500.00 

12

Task 1.4.2
Certified Welding Inspections including visual inspection of cold-formed steel deck. 
(Rate shall include all costs for travel to and from the Site, time on site, equipment and 
material expenses,
report preparation, and all overhead and administrative
costs.)

HR 400

80.00$                  

 $              32,000.00 

115.00$             

 $              46,000.00 

90.00$               

 $                 36,000.00 

TASK 1.5 Certified Seismic Resistance Inspection – see Table 5 and 6 on Sheets 01-S-
60001 through 01- S-60004

13

Task 1.5.1
Review seismic systems including manufacturers certificate of compliance reports and 
anchorage requirements
(Unit price includes all costs for travel to and from the manufacturer’s facility, labor, 
time on site, non- destructive testing methods, equipment and material
expenses, report preparation, and all overhead and administrative costs. Assume 8 
hours total per visit.)

EA 20

640.00$                

 $              12,800.00 

750.00$             

 $              15,000.00 

950.00$             

 $                 19,000.00 

14

Task 1.5.2
Certified Welding Inspections including visual inspection for seismic force resistance 
systems. (Rate shall include all costs for travel to and from the Site, time on site, 
equipment and material expenses,
report preparation, and all overhead and administrative costs.)

HR 300

80.00$                  

 $              24,000.00 

115.00$             

 $              34,500.00 

90.00$               

 $                 27,000.00 

4A-3



Client: Willamette Water Supply Program
Project: RFP-WTP-0400822
Description: WTP_1.0 Materials Testing & Special Inspection

Item No. Item Description Unit Qty Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price

Northwest Testing, Inc.Carlson Testing, Inc Intertek-PSI

15

Task 1.5.3
Additional non-destructive testing of seismic force resistance systems including 
anchorage, bolting and vibration isolation systems. (Rate shall include all costs for 
travel to and from the Site,
time on site, equipment and material expenses, report preparation, and all overhead 
and administrative costs.)

HR 1,000

80.00$                  

 $              80,000.00 

115.00$             

 $            115,000.00 

90.00$               

 $                 90,000.00 

TASK 1.6 Soils Testing – see Table 1 on Sheets 01- S-60001 through 01-S-60004

16

Task 1.6.1 Proctor Analysis
(Unit price includes laboratory analysis, report preparation and administrative costs. 
Travel to and from site, time on site, and labor for obtaining and
transporting samples shall be included in hourly rates in task 1.6.3)

EA 30

270.00$                

 $                8,100.00 

275.00$             

 $                8,250.00 

325.00$             

 $                   9,750.00 

17

Task 1.6.2 Soils Gradation
(Unit price includes laboratory analysis, report preparation and administrative costs. Travel to 
and from site, time on site, and labor for obtaining and transporting samples shall be included in 
hourly rates in
task 1.6.3)

EA 10

135.00$                

 $                1,350.00 

275.00$             

 $                2,750.00 

205.00$             

 $                   2,050.00 

18

Task 1.6.3 Soils Field Inspection
Including nuclear density inspections, obtaining and transporting material samples 
(Rate shall include all costs for travel to and from the Site, labor, time on site,
report preparation, and all overhead and administrative costs.)

HR 2,000

70.00$                  

 $            140,000.00 

95.00$               

 $            190,000.00 

80.00$               

 $               160,000.00 

19

Task 1.6.4 Asphalt Concrete Paving Density Inspection and Testing
Including nuclear density inspections and densometer testing. (Rate shall include all 
costs for travel to and from the Site, labor, time on site, report preparation,
and all overhead and administrative costs.)

HR 400

70.00$                  

 $              28,000.00 

95.00$               

 $              38,000.00 

80.00$               

 $                 32,000.00 

TASK 1.7 Concrete/CLSM Materials Testing – see Table 2 on Sheets 01-S-60001 
through 01-S-60004

20

Task 1.7.1 Compressive Strength Testing
(Unit price includes laboratory analysis, report preparation and administrative costs for 
compressive strength testing for concrete and controlled low strength material for 6 
collected cylinders, assuming 4 cylinder breaks needed per set. Labor for preparing, 
curing,
obtaining and transporting samples to be included in task 1.7.2)

SET 600

150.00$                

 $              90,000.00 

175.00$             

 $            105,000.00 

150.00$             

 $                 90,000.00 

4A-3



Client: Willamette Water Supply Program
Project: RFP-WTP-0400822
Description: WTP_1.0 Materials Testing & Special Inspection

Item No. Item Description Unit Qty Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price

Northwest Testing, Inc.Carlson Testing, Inc Intertek-PSI

21

Task 1.7.2 Concrete Field Inspection
Price includes labor and associated materials for special inspection, slump testing, air 
content testing, temperature testing, and obtaining and transporting material samples 
for task 1.7.1 (Rate shall include all costs for travel to and from the Site, labor, 
equipment
and material expenses, time on site, report preparation, and all overhead and 
administrative costs.)

HR 2000

70.00$  

 $            140,000.00 

95.00$               

 $            190,000.00 

80.00$               

 $               160,000.00 

TASK 1.8 Masonry Materials Testing – see Table 7 on Sheets 01-S-60001 through 01-
S-60004

22

Task 1.8.1 Verify size and location of structural elements including anchorage details, framing 
and other construction
(Unit price includes all costs for travel to and from the manufacturer’s facility, labor, time on 
site, non- destructive testing methods, equipment and material
expenses, report preparation, and all overhead and administrative costs. Assume 8 hours total 
per visit.)

EA 10

560.00$                

 $ 5,600.00 

750.00$             

 $ 7,500.00 

950.00$             

 $ 9,500.00 

23

Task 1.8.2 Compressive Strength Testing
(Unit price includes laboratory analysis, report preparation and administrative costs for 
compressive strength testing for concrete and controlled low strength material for 6 collected 
prisms, assuming 4 prism breaks needed per set. Labor for preparing, curing,
obtaining and transporting samples to be included in task 1.8.3)

SET 20

660.00$                

 $              13,200.00 

720.00$             

 $              14,400.00 

150.00$             

 $ 3,000.00 

24

Task 1.8.3 Masonry Field Inspection
Price includes labor and associated materials for special inspection, slump testing, air content 
testing, temperature testing, and obtaining and transporting material samples for tasks 1.8.2 
(Rate shall include all costs for travel to and from the Site, labor, equipment
and material expenses, time on site, report preparation, and all overhead and administrative 
costs.)

HR 1000

70.00$  

 $              70,000.00 

95.00$               

 $              95,000.00 

85.00$               

 $ 85,000.00 

TASK 1.10 Other Special Inspections
Tasks 1.10.1 through 1.10.13
Rates shall include all costs for travel to and from the Site, labor, equipment and material 
expenses, time on site, report preparation, and all overhead and administrative costs.

25 Task 1.10.1 Additional Required Special
Inspections and Tests of Structural Steel - Welding (not covered by Task 1.2 above) HR 420

80.00$  
 $              33,600.00 

115.00$             
 $              48,300.00 

90.00$               
 $ 37,800.00 

4A-3



Client: Willamette Water Supply Program
Project: RFP-WTP-0400822
Description: WTP_1.0 Materials Testing & Special Inspection

Item No. Item Description Unit Qty Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Price

Northwest Testing, Inc.Carlson Testing, Inc Intertek-PSI

26 Task 1.10.2 Additional Required Special Inspections and Tests of Structural Steel - 
Bolting (not covered by Task 1.3 above) HR 210 80.00$   $              16,800.00 115.00$              $              24,150.00 90.00$                $ 18,900.00 

27 Task 1.10.3 Additional Required Special Inspections and Tests of Steel Construction 
other than Structural Steel (not covered by Task 1.4 above) HR 50 80.00$   $ 4,000.00 115.00$              $ 5,750.00 90.00$                $ 4,500.00 

28 Task 1.10.4 Additional Required Special Inspections and Tests for Seismic Resistance 
(not covered by Task 1.5 above) HR 150 80.00$   $              12,000.00 115.00$              $              17,250.00 90.00$                $ 13,500.00 

29 Task 1.10.5 Additional Required Special
Inspections and Tests of Soils (not covered by Task 1.6 above) HR 300 70.00$   $              21,000.00 95.00$                $              28,500.00 80.00$                $ 24,000.00 

30 Task 1.10.6 Additional Required Special Inspections and Tests of Concrete (not 
covered by Task 1.7 above) HR 250 70.00$   $              17,500.00 95.00$                $              23,750.00 85.00$                $ 21,250.00 

31 Task 1.10.7 Additional Required Level B Verifications and Inspections of Masonry
Construction (not covered by Task 1.8 above) HR 120 70.00$   $ 8,400.00 95.00$                $              11,400.00 85.00$                $ 10,200.00 

32 Task 1.11.1 Project Completion Report HR 60 97.00$   $ 5,820.00 115.00$              $ 6,900.00 130.00$              $ 7,800.00 
 $         1,236,180.00  $         1,696,850.00  $            1,444,650.00 

 $ -    $ -    $ -   
1,236,180.00$          1,696,850.00$          1,444,650.00$             

ADJUSTMENTS:
BASE BID TOTAL:

WTP_1.0 Baseline Bid Sub Total

4A-3



Project Name: WTP_1.0 Materials Testing                       Cost Proposal
Variance from  

Low Bid
Cost Score

(600) 

Health & Safety 
Approach

(50)

Firm Experience and 
Reference Projects

(150)

Key Staff Quals and Team 
Organization

(100)

Project Understanding and 
Approach

(100)
Total Non-Cost Score 

(400)

Total Non-Cost Score 
Adjusted 

(400)
Total Score

(1,000)
Carlson Testing, Inc. $1,236,180.00 $0.00 600 30 128 92 89 338.50 398.53 999 275
Intertek-PSI $1,696,850.00 $460,670.00 437 35 124 89 78 325.00 382.63 820
Northwest Testing, Inc. $1,444,650.00 $208,470.00 513 40 122 89 89 339.75 400.00 913

4A-4



 
 
 
 

Willamette Water Supply System Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 
 



4A-5



4A-5



4A-5



4A-5



STAFF REPORT

To: WWSS Board of Commissioners

From:  Joelle Bennett, P.E., WWSP Assistant Program Director

Date:  December 1, 2022

Subject: Anticipated Business Agenda Items for the February 2023 Meeting of the WWSS Board of 
Commissioners

Key Concepts:
The next Willamette Water Supply System (WWSS) Commission Board meeting agenda is anticipated to include 
staff recommendations for the following business agenda items: 

1. Election of Officers
2. WWSS Annual Work Plan and Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-24 and WWSP Capital Improvement Plan

(Baseline 8.0)

Background: 
There are two anticipated business agenda items for the February 2, 2023, meeting of the WWSS Board of 
Commissioners. Due to the dynamic nature of the WWSS work, request for approval of some items may be delayed 
or new items may emerge on the business agenda for the next meeting. WWSS staff strive to provide preliminary 
information one meeting prior to requesting action and a full staff report describing the recommended action 
during the appropriate month. 

1. Election of Officers

As outlined in today’s General Manager’s report, it is a requirement in the WWSS Intergovernmental 
Agreement to elect the Commission Chair and Vice Chair at the first meeting of the calendar year. At the 
February WWSS Board meeting nominations and elections will be held to select new Board officers.

2. WWSS Annual Work Plan and Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-24 and WWSP Capital Improvement Plan
(Baseline 8.0)

The WWSP team has been developing a rebaseline schedule and budget reflective of the current market 
conditions and construction environment. An initial draft of baseline 8.0 is scheduled to be provided to the 
Partners on or around December 23, 2022, and the official Baseline 8.0 will be released in January 2023.

In alignment with the WWSP Annual Baseline Schedule and Budget, WWSP staff are preparing the WWSS 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Work Plan and Budget. The Annual Work Plan provides the proposed scope of work to 
be performed by the Managing Agency for the fiscal year 2023-24 (FY2024), in accordance with the WWSS 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). 

5A-1



Anticipated Business Agenda Items for the February 2023 Meeting of the WWSS Board of Commissioners
December 1, 2022 
Page 2 of 2

As early as the February WWSS Board meeting, WWSP staff will present the WWSS Annual Work Plan and 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-24 and WWSP Capital Improvement Plan (Baseline 8.0), with a recommendation 
to the Board to approve.  

Budget Impact:  
Anticipated costs for the actions described in this staff report are reflected in the WWSP FY2023 budget and the 
overall program baseline budget. 

Staff Contact Information:  
Dave Kraska, P.E., WWSS General Manager, 503-941-4561, david.kraska@tvwd.org 
Joelle Bennett, P.E., WWSP Assistant Director, 503-941-4577, joelle.bennett@tvwd.org 

Attachments: 
Approvals and Procurement Forecast (November 2022 – February 2023)

5A-1



Meeting date:10/20/2022 Page 1 of 1
Version: 1

Approvals and Procurement Forecast: November 2022 through February 2023

This report provides a four-month projection of (1) forthcoming actions under the WWSS Management Authority Matrix and
(2) ongoing and forthcoming procurements.

a = Actual date
e = Email approval
FC      = Finance Committee
LCRB = Local Contract Review Board
MC    = Management Committee
N/A = Not applicable
OC     = Operations Committee

Rec.  = Recommendation
t = Tentative date
TBD = To be determined; sufficient information not available to project a date
Note: Dates in red text indicate meetings needed outside the normal meeting 
schedule

Type Description
Projected 

Action

Body/Position (projected action date)

Program 
Director

WWSS
Committees

WWSS
Board

Program Baseline or Related 
Plans

Authority)

1. WWSP 2023 Rebaseline Schedule and
Budget and WWSS Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Work Plan and Budget

Approve N/A 1/19/2023 t 2/2/2023 t

Execute N/A N/A N/A

Real Estate 2. None Approve N/A N/A N/A

IGAs, MOUs, Permit 
Commitments, & Similar 
Agreements

3. DCS_1.0 Sherwood Broadband Services
IGA

Approve N/A MC: 3/18/2021 a 4/1/2021 a

Execute 1/31/2023 t N/A N/A

4. PLM_1.3 BPA Engineering and
Construction Agreement

Approve N/A 9/22/2022 a 10/6/2022 a

Execute 11/30/2022 t N/A N/A

Contracts (above Program 5. WTP_1.0 Materials Testing & Special
Inspection

Goal: Quality Control WTP_1.0
Value: $1.2M
Contractor: Carlson Testing, Inc.

Approve N/A MC: 11/17/2022 t 12/1/2022 t

Execute 12/9/2022 t N/A N/A

Contract Amendments and 
Change Orders

Authority)

6. RWF_1.0 GMP 2 for Construction
Goal: Construct RWF_1.0
Value: $61.9 M
Contractor: Kiewit

Approve N/A MC: 8/18/2022 a 9/1/2022 a

Execute 9/2/2022 a N/A N/A

Local Contract Review Board 
(LCRB) Actions

7. None Approve N/A N/A N/A

Other 8. None Approve N/A N/A N/A

Execute N/A N/A N/A

5A-2



Willamette Water Supply System Commission 
Board Meeting 

 
December 1, 2022 


	20221201_WWSS_Board Mtg Agenda.
	1A-1_WWSS GM Report 12.1.22
	1A-2_Safety Minute_Frozen Pipes December 2022
	1A-3_WWSS Quarterly Report _FY 23 _September 2022
	1A-4_WWSS GM Report Presentation 12.1.22
	3A-1_20221006_WWSS_Board Mtg MINUTES.
	4A-1_WTP_1.0 Materials Testing-Staff Report.
	4A-2_Exhibit A WTP 1.0 Materials Testing Contract 2023-027
	4A-3_Exhibit B  WTP_1.0 Materials Testing Price Proposal Summary
	4A-4_Exhibit C WTP_1.0 Materials Testing Best Value Scoring Summary
	4A-5_WTP_1.0 Materials Testing.
	5A-1_Staff Report_Anticipated Feb 2023 Business Items
	5A-2_Approvals and Procurement Forecast- Nov2022



